
Friends Meeting House, Bournemouth  

16 Wharncliffe Road, Boscombe, Bournemouth, Dorset, BH5 1AH 

National Grid Reference: SZ 10982 91518 

  

  

Statement of Significance 

The meeting house is a large building of 1964, built following a site exchange 
with Marks & Spencer. It has low overall significance. 
 
Evidential value 
The meeting house is a modern building which was designed to be flexible in 
use. It has low evidential value. 
 
Historical value 
The building is a large, modern meeting house built to serve a large post-war 
meeting in the Bournemouth area. It is the successor building to a meeting 
house of 1912 built on a site acquired in 1871. It has medium historical value. 
 
Aesthetic value 
The design, the materials and the furnishings are typical of the 1960s, with 
few decorative details. The building has low aesthetic value. 
 
Communal value 
The building is primarily a Quaker place of worship which is also well-used by 
local community groups. It has high communal value. 



Part 1: Core data 

1.1 Area Meeting: Bournemouth Coastal 

1.2 Property Registration Number: 0012270 

1.3 Owner: Area Meeting 

1.4 Local Planning Authority: Bournemouth Borough Council 

1.5 Historic England locality: South West  

1.6 Civil parish: Bournemouth NPA 

1.7 Listed status: Not listed 

1.8 NHLE: N/a 

1.9 Conservation Area: Boscombe Spa 

1.10 Scheduled Ancient Monument: No 

1.11 Heritage at Risk: No 

1.12 Date(s): 1964 

1.13 Architect(s): Dexter & Staniland 

1.14 Date of visit: 3 June 2016 

1.15 Name of report author: Johanna Roethe 

1.16 Name of contact(s) made on site: Janet Warren and Frances Pouncey 

1.17 Associated buildings and sites: None 

1.18 Attached burial ground: No 

1.19 Information sources:  
Butler, D.M., The Quaker Meeting Houses of Britain, 1999, vol. 1, pp. 230-232 
Local Meeting Archive, copies of original drawings, Dexter & Staniland, July 1962 
Wigg, L., ‘Bournemouth Meeting House: History of the Site’, typescript, 2014 
‘Quakers in Fordingbridge’, typescript 
‘Bournemouth Friends’, typescript 
Local Meeting survey by Janet Warren, April 2016 
 
Part 2: The Meeting House & Burial Ground: history, contents, use, setting and 
designation 

2.1 Historical background  

Quaker visitors to Bournemouth met at Letitia Thompson’s house until 1871 when the 
construction of a purpose-built meeting house was first proposed. This was supported by the 
brothers Edward, Arthur and Joseph Pease of Darlington who frequently spent the winter at 
Bournemouth. (The Pease family were benefactors of a number of meeting houses at seaside 
resorts, for example at Jersey (qv).) A site in Avenue Road (which was then being developed) 
was bought in 1871 and the meeting house completed the following year. The cost was £700, 
of which the Pease brothers contributed £175. This was a T-plan building with a full-height 
meeting room and lower ancillary rooms flanking the entrance (figure 1). In 1912, an 
extension was proposed (architects: Rumsby & Rodd) but the discovery of dry rot and 



structural problems due to insufficient foundations prompted a rebuilding on the same site 
instead (cost: £1,313). This was a building in the Queen Anne/Georgian Revival style with a 
tall hipped roof (figure 2).  

 
Figure 1: Plan and perspective of the meeting house of 1872 (Butler, vol. 1, p. 230) 

 
Figure 2: The former meeting house of 1912 (Local Meeting archive) 

 

In 1964, the meeting house in Avenue Road was acquired by Marks & Spencer who 
redeveloped the site in return for paying for a replacement building in Wharncliffe Road, 
Boscombe. (Apparently, no money changed hands during the transaction.) This, the current 
meeting house, was built by the architects Dexter & Staniland in 1964 and opened on 20 
June that year (figure 3).  

The Bournemouth Local Meeting has been merged with that at Fordingbridge which was 
discontinued in 1905 due to dwindling membership. The meeting house at Fordingbridge 
was sold in 1947 but is still extant (not listed). This is a building of 1835 on a site acquired in 
1694. Meetings at Fordingbridge were re-started in November 2011 using the United 
Reformed Church. 

 



 
Figure 3: The new meeting house shortly after completion in 1964 (Local Meeting archive) 

 
2.2 The building and its principal fittings and fixtures 

The meeting house’s roughly oblong plan is aligned east-west, with the meeting room at the 
west and the warden’s flat over ancillary rooms to the east. The entrance is about halfway 
along the north elevation and there is an internal courtyard in the eastern half. The materials 
are reinforced concrete with brown brick in stretcher bond. The brick is occasionally used for 
decorative effect: the concave west wall of the meeting room has three rows of vertical strips 
of projecting headers, and inside the entrance porch are sixteen squares of headers laid on 
edge. The tall meeting room is the same height as the two-storey wing to the rear; ancillary 
spaces are only single-storey in height. The concave west end wall has a large stone panel 
with the inscription ‘FRIENDS’ MEETING HOUSE’. 

The entrance lobby at the north leads into the small Joseph Rowntree Room at the northwest 
and the large meeting room (George Fox Hall) to the southwest. The latter is a large space lit 
by tall windows to the south and east, with clerestory windows to the north. At the west is a 
stage lit by lateral windows on either side of the curved end wall (photo bottom left on page 
1). The floor is of woodblock with an outer edge of lino with a green and white meander 
pattern. At the northeast corner of the building are toilets and a kitchen which connects to 
the adjacent John Woolman Room which can be subdivided with a folding partition. At the 
southeast corner is the small Elizabeth Fry Room. The large and narrow Margaret Fell Room 
is at the south (photo bottom right on page 1). The small inner courtyard has a fishpond. The 
warden’s flat at the east was not inspected, nor was the small basement containing the 
former boiler room. 

2.3 Loose furnishings 

There are two old benches in the meeting room, both with bench ends carved with a circle 
and a trefoil. (There are three similar benches at Poole Meeting House (qv) which came from 
the old meeting house at Bournemouth.) There are also several sets of the original 1960s 
chairs, the same model in three different colours (olive, red and green). The entrance lobby 
has four older chairs of unknown provenance with carved backs and turned legs and armrest 
supports. 



2.4 Attached burial ground (if any) 

Not applicable 

2.5 The meeting house in its wider setting  

The meeting house is surrounded by a garden to the west and south, while there is a drive to 
the north and a car park to the east. The wider area is suburban and residential with a few 
hotels, yet within walking distance of Boscombe’s shopping centre. 

2.6 Listed status  

The building is currently not listed and is not considered to be a candidate for listing.  

2.7 Archaeological potential of the site 
 
This part of Boscombe was not developed until the late nineteenth century. There was a 
Victorian villa known as ‘Studland House’ on the site. The site has low archaeological 
potential. 
 


